Ashton Keynes Parish Council
Minutes of a meeting held in the Village Hall on Wednesday 11th July 2012


Present: Cllrs I Woods (Chairman), M Carter, J Hughes, M Jackson, S Jefferson, M Seymour, A Stefanovic, R Thomas, E Tidmarsh and D Wingrove


Six members of the public



The Chairman welcomed the members of the public and invited Mrs Allison Beadle and Revd Dr Shirley Danby to give details for their attendance.  Allison explained that she, a Church Warden, and Shirley, the Curate, had come to ask for the support of the Parish Council.  She said that the cost of running the Church had risen steeply, especially the cost of insurance as a result of the roof problems, and the Church has run at a financial loss for each of the last five years. There is also a need to overhaul the lighting and sound system in the Church, which is a Grade 1 Listed Building and will be expensive.  Allison said that in order to defray these costs, they are establishing a “Friends of Holt Cross Church” Committee that will launch is September and will report to the PCC.  Shirley said that the building serves the need of the whole village and it is hoped that all the “Friends” will help support the building and improvement of the Church.  She said that the weekly cost of supporting the building is £120 and the annual cost for everything is £25K.  Allison suggested that someone from the Parish Council could be on the “Friends” Committee.  The Chairman thought it was a great idea and said the Committee needs someone who is good at marketing.  Cllr M Jackson concluded by asking them to let the Council know how they can help.


The Chairman thanked Allison and Shirley for their time and explanation of the intentions of the “Friends of Holy Cross Church”; they then left the room.



The Chairman then invited Mr and Mrs Simon and Wendy O’Neill and Mr Charles Manning to explain the reason for their attendance.  Mr Manning, the Agent for Mr and Mrs O’Neill, said that he wanted to demonstrate what went wrong with the original Pilgrim Cottage Planning Application.  He produced a new A2 drawing of the Pilgrim Cottage site and a drawing of the previous Application, which he said was bad in many ways.  He compared the two drawings and showed how the new Application solved all the previous complaints.  Cllr M Jackson said that the Cottage style approach to the new building, as opposed to the Barn, was preferred.  There followed a short discussion on building materials and other aspects of the new three bedroom building that will be built.


The Chairman thanked Mr and Mrs O’Neill and Mr Manning for their time and explanation of the upgraded Planning Application; they then left the room.

2012/85
To accept apologies for Absence



Apologies for absence were received from County Cllr C Soden and Cllr, J Freeth.
2012/86
Declarations of Interest on items on the Agenda



A declaration of interest was submitted by Cllr J Hughes on the Horse and Jockey Planning Application, to be discussed under Agenda item 2012/92.
2012/87
To confirm the Minutes of the Council Meetings held on 13th June 2012


The Minutes of the Parish Council meeting, held on 13th June 2012, were approved and signed by the Chairman.  
2012/88
Matters arising from the Minutes
The Clerk said he only had one matter arising; he reported that a meeting is expected to be set up shortly by the Chairman,  between the Milling Close residents, the Neighbourhood Police Team, Wiltshire Council and the Jephson Housing Association.  The meeting will hope to find a solution to the recent anti-social behaviour in Milling Close.
2012/89
Adoption of the New Code of Conduct
The Clerk explained the reason for the Parish Council having to adopt a new Code of Conduct and said that he had sent every member two options of new Codes.  The first option was that of the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) and the second was that of Wiltshire Council.  The Clerk said that whichever option, or a locally produced Code based on the principles inculcated in the first paragraph of Wiltshire Council’s version, must be chosen for adoption as soon as possible after 1st July 2012.   The Chairman said that the members should make their choice at the September Parish Council meeting, and continue to abide by the current Code of Conduct until the replacement is adopted.
2012/90
Clerk’s Report


The Clerk gave the following report:  
·  He said he would like to begin by giving his report on the current financial position of the Parish Council; the figures have been rounded to the nearest pound.  At the beginning of the financial year, namely 1st April, there was £25,113 in the Bank Accounts and in April we received half our Precept allocation of £16,025, giving a total of £41,138.  The Parish Council has also received a further £4,494 and spent £10,327 this financial year.  Therefore, as of the 30th June 2011, there was £35,305 in the Bank Accounts and the Savings Certificate.
· He reported that the unaudited finance figures of the Diamond Jubilee celebrations were as follows:

 Receipts - £5265.16 + VAT of £703.10, comes to £5968.26

 Expenditure - £5709.95 + a bill for £206, comes to £5915.95

There was an excess of £52.31, which will be added to the sum it takes to refurbish the War Memorial and place a plaque on it in memory of the Diamond Jubilee.  He said that this would be explained in more detail in the August edition of the Parish Magazine.

·  The Clerk reported that the SLCC Annual Conference and AGM 2012 are scheduled to take place in Bristol from Friday 12th to Sunday 14th October. He said he could make an early bird booking as an SLCC member for £385 + VAT for full board and entrance to all conference sessions.  Otherwise, he could make a booking for the Saturday only for £45 + VAT.  He will make the decision after he has seen the Agenda; the booking has to be in by 7th September.

·  An e-mail has been received from Malcolm Beaven, the Wiltshire Council Highway Engineer, to say that they are still awaiting the replacement bollard for the one that was damaged in front of the Church. He expects the bollard to be received and installed within the next month.

· The President of the WI has asked if the Parish Council will use the Bradstone Pavilion in October for their meeting, because the WI are having their annual Fashion Show and they need the whole of the Village Hall   The members all agreed to the request and the Clerk said he would make the necessary booking of the Bradstone Pavilion.
Action: The Clerk

· He said his last item was to ask for the members’ wish list of work for the Local Highway and Streetscene Community Team to undertake during a two week period, starting on 16th July.  A number of items were forthcoming, which the Clerk said he would forward to the Team Leader, Matt Perrott.
Action: The Clerk 
2012/91
Financial Transactions
a. Payments Made by Cheque:

    The Council noted that the following payments had been made by cheque:

· AK Village Hall (June Room Rental)
£      17.00

· Aeshton Services (Grasscutting of Verges)
£    110.00

· Parish Online (Annual Fee)
£      24.00

· Mr I Woods (Jubilee Expenses)
£    292.28

· Big Brunch Band (Trumpeter)
£      50.00

· Philip B Ward Haulage (VH Car Park Re-Surfacing)
£ 2,344.80

· Mr I Woods (Jubilee Expenses)
£    300.00

· Clerk’s Salary (June)
£    647.80

· Clerk’s Expenses (June)
£      44.42

· HMRC (Tax & NI)
£    483.45

b. Payments Made by Debit Card:


  The Council noted the following payment was made by Debit Card:

· Printerinks.com (Printer Inks – 4 Colours)
£     102.02

2012/92
Horse and Jockey Planning Application


Cllr J Hughes did not speak while this agenda item was discussed.

Cllr R Thomas began by saying that the “Change of Use” Planning Application had still not been received.  The Clerk said that he had spoken several times to Tim Pizzey, the Planning Officer, who said he would now like to remove the words “…of Ground Floor…” from both Planning Applications, which would make them “Change of Use” Applications.  This was not considered to be acceptable, and the Clerk was asked to contact County Cllr C Soden and express their concern.











Action: The Clerk










2012/93
Committees, Working Groups and Representatives’ Reports
The Chairman invited members to give their reports:





Planning Committee
Cllr R Thomas reported that a Planning Application had been received from Cullimore’s (Gravels) Ltd asking for an extension of their Inert Waste work at the Dairy Farm Quarry to be extended to July 2022.  The Chairman said that comments on this Application need to be accepted from affected residents at an Extraordinary Parish Council meeting, which the Clerk was asked to arrange as early as possible.











Action: The Clerk
Cllr J Hughes mentioned that Aggregate Industries had submitted a copy of a Planning Application to Wiltshire Council to extend the packing building at North End. The Clerk had submitted the information to all the members for information.  In summary, the Chairman said the Council had “No objections”.
Cotswold Water Park
Cllr A Stefanovic mentioned that the JCC had been disbanded and that the Parish Panel was going to be formed at a meeting the following evening.


Footpaths Working Group

Cllr M Seymour said that a recent complaint about a Footpath being closed needed to be explained in the Parish Newsletter, because many people do not understand the law on this subject.  Cllr D Wingrove said there was evidence of horses using the footpath between Four Acre Close and The Mead, which also needed to be explained.










Action: The Clerk

School Governors

Cllr D Wingrove mentioned that considerable pressure had been brought to bear on the School to become an Academy.  The Chairman then mentioned that too many parents are parking their vehicles in front of the Shop and asked that this be brought to the attention of the parents through the School.  Cllr S Jefferson asked whether the summer activities on the School playing field would be available again this year, to which Cllr Wingrove confirmed that they would.

Playing Fields Committee

The Chairman said the grass was growing very quickly due to the excessive rain this summer.  He said that one of the balance posts (lifting arms) on the tractor had broken, fortunately, while it was stationary, which had cost £50 to replace.  The Chairman said he would give a more full report from the Playing Fields Committee in September.

Neighbourhood Planning Team
Cllr M Jackson reported that he had received two responses to his advert in the Parish Newsletter for volunteers to join the team, but ideally he needed twenty.  He said under these circumstances he must carefully think through the way ahead.  Cllr M Carter said he had received some papers from Sarah Cooksey in Sherston on the subject.  Cllr Jackson said he would speak to Sarah on how she had got started and said he was aware of a Public Meting on the subject in Sherston on 17th July.   
2012/94
Speed in Village
After considerable discussion, it was agreed that something has got to be done to reduce vehicles speeding through the village (High Road and B4696).  Cllr M Carter showed the results of a survey conducted on the Council Website, whereby everyone that participated agreed to the need to reduce the speed of vehicles in the village.  The Chairman said that a solution that had clearly worked in Siddington would be to have a Police Speed Camera Van parked on the High Road or B4696.  Over a period of a few months it was noticeable that the traffic was obeying the speed limit.  The Clerk said that he had brought up this suggestion before, but he didn’t think Wiltshire had a Van with a camera.  Nonetheless, the Clerk was asked to contact the Police again on the subject. 










Action: The Clerk
2012/95
Village Shop Update
No finance figures were received to provide an update this month.
The Chairman agreed to the following subjects being raised:
· Cllr M Seymour reported that there had been damage to a number of cars in Church Walk and the residents have been trying to find out who the culprit(s) are.  The worst affected was Mrs Leslie Gardner who had received over £700 of damage to her vehicles, which was going to be reported in the local paper the following day.  The Chairman asked the Clerk to include the item in the next edition of the Parish Magazine.  The Chairman concluded by thanking Mrs Gardner for bringing it to the attention of the Parish Council and said we would raise the profile of the subject.










Action: The Clerk
· Cllr R Thomas raised the subject of the overhanging hedges at the bottom of Cox’s Hill, which the Clerk said he would communicate to the owners.
The business of the meeting was concluded at 10.05pm.
The next meeting of the Parish Council will be held on Wednesday 12th September 2012, commencing at 7.45pm

Page 2012- 25

